
Page 1 

 

 

 

AGENDA  
Meeting: Cabinet - Shareholder Group 

Place: Kennet Room - County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN 

Date: Tuesday 25 June 2024 

Time: 10.30 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Stuart Figini of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Trowbridge, direct line 01225-718221 or email 
stuart.figini@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines 01225 713114/713115. 
 
All public reports referred to on this agenda are available on the Council’s website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
 
Membership: 
 
Cllr Richard Clewer Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 

Military-Civilian Integration, Health and 
Wellbeing, Economic Development, Heritage, 
Arts,  and Tourism 

Cllr Nick Botterill Cabinet Member for Finance, Development 
Management and Strategic Planning 

Cllr Phil Alford Cabinet Member for Housing 
 



Page 2 

 

 
Recording and Broadcasting Information 

 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the 
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes 
within the Council.  
 
By submitting a statement or question for a meeting you are consenting that you may be 
recorded presenting this and that in any case your name will be made available on the 
public record. The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.  
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability 
resulting from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings 
they accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.  
 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.  

 
Parking 

 
To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows: 
 
County Hall, Trowbridge 
Bourne Hill, Salisbury 
Monkton Park, Chippenham 
 
County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended. 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
Our privacy policy is found here. 
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details 
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/democracy-privacy-policy


Page 3 

 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

 To confirm as a true and correct record and sign the minutes of the Cabinet 
Shareholder Group meeting held on 26 March 2024. 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee or Monitoring Officer. 

4   Leaders Announcements  

 To receive any announcements from the Leader. 

5   Public Participation and Questions from Councillors  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.  
 
This meeting is open to the public, who may ask a question or make a 
statement. Questions may also be asked by members of the Council.  
 
Written notice of questions or statements should be submitted to Democratic 
Services at committee@wiltshire.gov.uk by 12.00 noon on Wednesday 19 June 
2024. 

6   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business, which the Leader agrees to consider as a matter of 
urgency. 

 Part II 

 Item(s) during consideration of which it is recommended that the public should 
be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be 

disclosed 

7   Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 This is to give further notice in accordance with paragraph 5 (4) and 5 (5) of the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 of the intention to take the following 
item in private. 
 
To consider passing the following resolution: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Item Number 8 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 

mailto:committee@wiltshire.gov.uk


Page 4 

 

defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking item in private: 
 
Paragraph 3 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

8   Stone Circle Company Business Plan (To follow) 

 To consider further the Stone Circle Development Company Business Plan 
following comments at the last meeting. 

 



 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet - Shareholder Group 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE CABINET - SHAREHOLDER GROUP MEETING HELD ON 26 
MARCH 2024 AT KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD, 
TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
Cllr Richard Clewer (Chairman), Cllr Nick Botterill and Cllr Phil Alford 
 
Also Present: 
Cllr Adrian Foster, Cllr Richard Budden and Cllr Gordon King 
  

 
48 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies. 
 

49 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The public minutes of the Cabinet Shareholder Group meeting held on 10 
October 2023 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 10 October 2023. 
 

50 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Adrian Foster declared an interest in agenda item 10 – Stone Circle 
Company Business Plans 2024/25, in that his wife is a trustee of White House 
Housing Association, who are party to the Tisbury site.  
 
Note – Cllr Foster is not a member of the Shareholder Group and did not take 
part in any decisions made at the meeting.  
 

51 Leaders Announcements 
 
There were no Leaders announcements. 
 

52 Public Participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
There was no public participation or Councillor questions. 
 

53 Nomination Agreement 
 
The Shareholder Group considered a report seeking approval of changes to the 
Nomination Agreement between Wiltshire Council and Stone Circle Housing 
Company. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The Group noted that the amendments would allow the Company to offer 
properties to alternative groups where the Council’s Housing team is unable to 
provide a suitable nomination and to refine the lettings policy and related 
indemnity. 
 
Cllr Gordon King – Deputy Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group and Cllr 
Adrian Foster commented on the amended lettings policy and indemnity, 
particularly the timescale of 5 years detailed in the requirements of the policy. 
They felt that this was slightly excessive and asked if a reduced timescale of 2 
or 3 years could be considered. The Leader and Deputy Chief Executive 
confirmed that current timescale of 5 years detailed in the policy is an industry 
standard and afforded the necessary level of security to Stone Circle.       
 
Resolved: 
That the Shareholder Group note the requested changes to the 
Nomination Agreement between Wiltshire Council and Stone Circle 
Housing Company as proposed by the Company in the report and to 
delegate negotiation and approval of the wording of the variation to the 
Nomination Agreement to the Corporate Director Resources & Deputy 
Chief Executive. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
Stone Circle Housing Company has requested amendments to the Nomination 
Agreement to allow the Company to offer properties to alternative groups where 
the Council’s Housing team is unable to provide a suitable nomination and to 
refine the lettings policy and related indemnity. 
 

54 Urgent Items 
 
The Shareholder Group considered an urgent report seeking approval of 
appointments to the Board’s of the Stone Circle Company as required under the 
shareholder agreement. 
 
The Shareholder Group were specifically asked to consider replacing the 
Director of Finance as s151 Officer with the Director of Adult Social Care on the 
Board of Directors of Stone Circle Holding Company, Stone Circle Housing 
Company and Stone Circle Development Company. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. To approve the appointment of Emma Legg, Director, Adult Social 

Care to the Board of Directors of Stone Circle Holding Company, 
Stone Circle Housing Company and Stone Circle Development 
Company. 
 

2. To delegate authority to the Corporate Director, Resources to 
implement the decision described in point 1 above. 

 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 
The shareholder agreement between the Council and the Companies requires 
the Companies to seek approval from the Shareholder in respect of 
appointment of board members.  
 

55 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Agenda Item Numbers 9 and 10 because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information to the public. 
 

56 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The Part II (Private) minutes of the Cabinet Shareholder Group meeting held on 
10 October 2023 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
To approve as a correct record and sign the Part II (Private) minutes of the 
meeting held on 10 October 2023. 
 

57 Stone Circle Company Business Plan 
 
The Shareholder Group considered the report of the Corporate Director 
Resources & Deputy Chief Executive and Director Legal and Governance 
detailing the 2024/25 business plans proposed by the Stone Circle companies 
required under the shareholder agreement. 
 
Nick Samuels, Chairman of the Stone Circle Housing Company and Stone 
Circle Development Company, introduced a high-level overview of the Stone 
Circle Business Plan and along with Company officers responded to a number 
of comments and technical questions. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the proposals detailed in the report, as amended at the meeting be 
approved. 
  
Reason for Decision: 
 
The shareholder agreement between the Council and the Companies requires 
that certain decisions and reserved matters are taken by the Council in its 
capacity as shareholder. 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

The shareholder agreement requires the Companies to present their proposed 
business plans to the Council at least three months before the start of the 
financial year in question. 
 
This report is the outcome of that proposal and the consideration by the 
Shareholder Group of amended business plans for the forthcoming financial 
year, which follows a review of the governance of the Stone Circle Companies 
to ensure that they support the growth of the Companies and protect the 
interests of the Council as shareholder. 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.00 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Stuart Figini of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225-718221, e-mail stuart.figini@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line 01225 713114 or email 
communications@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 8

mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

